

## TWENTY-SIXTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Monday, March 30, 1987

The Senate met at 2:00 p.m. and was called to order by the President.

### CALL OF THE SENATE

Mr. Moe, R.D. imposed a call of the Senate. The Sergeant at Arms was instructed to bring in the absent members.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. Marcus Hess.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Adkins	Davis	Jude	Merriam	Ramstad
Anderson	DeCramer	Knaak	Metzen	Reichgott
Beckman	Dicklich	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke
Benson	Diessner	Kroening	Moe, R.D.	Samuelson
Berg	Frank	Laidig	Morse	Schmitz
Berglin	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Solon
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Spear
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pehler	Storm
Brandl	Freeman	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Stumpf
Brataas	Gustafson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Taylor
Chmielewski	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Vickerman
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Pogemiller	Waldorf
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkens	Purfeerst	Wegscheid
				Willet

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

### MEMBERS EXCUSED

Mr. Belanger was excused from the Session of today. Mr. Kroening was excused from the Session of today from 2:00 to 2:20 p.m. Messrs. Freeman, Luther and Ms. Peterson, D.C. were excused from the Session of today from 2:00 to 2:25 p.m. Mr. Storm was excused from the Session of today from 2:00 to 2:40 p.m.

### EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

The following communications were received and referred to the committee indicated.

December 29, 1986

The Honorable Jerome M. Hughes  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

The following appointment as Chair of the Waste Management Board is hereby respectfully submitted to the Senate for confirmation as required by law:

Joe Pavelich, 15 Cypress Blvd., Babbitt, St. Louis County, has been appointed by me, effective January 5, 1987, for a term expiring the first Monday in January, 1991.

(Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.)

Sincerely,

Rudy Perpich, Governor

March 25, 1987

The Honorable Fred C. Norton  
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable Jerome M. Hughes  
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts of the 1987 Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of the Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

S.F. No.	H.F. No.	Session Laws Chapter No.	Date Approved 1987	Date Filed 1987
85		4	March 17	March 18
211		5	March 17	March 18
	191	6	March 25	March 25
87		7	March 25	March 25
208		8	March 25	March 25
258		9	March 25	March 25
302		10	March 25	March 25
402		11	March 25	March 25

Sincerely,

Joan Anderson Growe  
Secretary of State

### MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following Senate File, AS AMENDED by the House, in which amendments the concurrence of the Senate is respectfully requested:

S.F. No. 97: A bill for an act relating to frauds; fixing conditions for the legal determination of fraud in property transfers; enacting the uniform fraudulent transfer act; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 513; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 513.20; 513.21; 513.22; 513.23; 513.24; 513.25; 513.26; 513.27; 513.28; 513.29; 513.30; 513.31; and 513.32.

Senate File No. 97 is herewith returned to the Senate.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 26, 1987

### CONCURRENCE AND REPASSAGE

Mr. Spear moved that the Senate concur in the amendments by the House to S.F. No. 97 and that the bill be placed on its repassage as amended. The motion prevailed.

S.F. No. 97 was read the third time, as amended by the House, and placed on its repassage.

The question was taken on the repassage of the bill, as amended.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 51 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	DeCramer	Knutson	Morse	Schmitz
Beckman	Diessner	Laidig	Novak	Spear
Benson	Frank	Langseth	Olson	Stumpf
Berg	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Pehler	Taylor
Berglin	Frederickson, D.R.	Lessard	Peterson, R.W.	Vickerman
Bernhagen	Gustafson	Marty	Piper	Waldorf
Bertram	Hughes	McQuaid	Purfeerst	Willet
Brandl	Johnson, D.E.	Mehrkens	Ramstad	
Chmielewski	Johnson, D.J.	Merriam	Reichgott	
Dahl	Jude	Metzen	Renneke	
Davis	Knaak	Moe, R.D.	Samuelson	

So the bill, as amended, was repassed and its title was agreed to.

### MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE - CONTINUED

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H.F. Nos. 29, 375, 444, 575, 661, 424, 526, 545, 542, 557, 687 and 713.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted March 26, 1987

### FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

H.F. No. 29: A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; requiring motor vehicle operators to use child passenger restraint system when transporting child under age of four; assessing court costs to violator under certain conditions; imposing penalty; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.685, subdivision 5, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

H.F. No. 375: A bill for an act relating to corrections; clarifying the commissioner of corrections authority in licensing and supervising insti-

tutions and facilities; providing for restitution by inmates for destruction of state property; clarifying terminology; authorizing the commissioner to adopt rules relating to payment of restitution by inmates; authorizing the forfeiture of contraband money or property; clarifying provisions relating to county probation reimbursement; providing a penalty for assaults on correctional employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 241.021, subdivision 1; 241.08, subdivision 1; 241.26, subdivision 5; 241.69, subdivision 2; 243.23, subdivision 3; 243.24, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 260.311, subdivision 4; 609.2231, by adding a subdivision; and 641.264, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

H.F. No. 444: A bill for an act relating to insurance; regulating funeral and burial expenses; allowing persons to select funeral or burial services and supplies of their choice; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 72A.325.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H.F. No. 575: A resolution memorializing the President and Congress to immediately direct the Farmers Home Administration to participate in and cooperate with the Farmer-Lender Mediation Program in the State of Minnesota.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

H.F. No. 661: A bill for an act relating to commerce; granting motor fuel retailers the option to purchase from wholesalers other than the refiner; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 80C.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H.F. No. 424: A bill for an act relating to the military; authorizing the adjutant general to delegate certain duties to subordinates; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 190.16, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Veterans.

H.F. No. 526: A bill for an act relating to human services; authorizing the department of human services to enter into shared service agreements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 246.57, subdivisions 1, 2, and by adding a subdivision; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 246.57, subdivision 3; 246.61; 246.62; and 246.63.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

H.F. No. 545: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; revising qualifications for the office of director of the division of waters; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 105.40, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

H.F. No. 542: A bill for an act relating to transportation; providing an alternative procedure to record town roads; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 164.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

H.F. No. 557: A bill for an act relating to state departments and agencies; renaming the mental retardation division of the department of human services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 245.072.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

H.F. No. 687: A bill for an act relating to collection and dissemination of data; allowing law enforcement agencies to release the date of birth of persons involved in traffic accidents; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.09, subdivision 13.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

H.F. No. 713: A bill for an act relating to Minnesota Statutes; correcting erroneous, ambiguous, omitted, and obsolete references and text; eliminating certain redundant, conflicting, and superseded provisions; providing instructions to the revisor; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 1.135, subdivision 3; 8.31, subdivision 1; 13.43, subdivision 6; 14.02, subdivision 4; 15.61; 17.59, subdivision 5; 17A.04, subdivision 1; 28A.15, subdivision 4; 38.27, subdivision 3; 41A.05, subdivision 2; 48.13, subdivision 2; 48.26; 49.01, subdivision 3; 49.44; 60A.17, subdivision 12; 64B.18; 72A.41, subdivision 1; 79.38, subdivision 1; 84A.08; 97A.021, subdivision 2; 97A.065, subdivision 4; 97A.205; 97A.441, subdivision 5; 97A.445, subdivision 3; 97A.465, subdivision 4; 97A.501, subdivision 2; 97A.545, subdivision 4; 97B.315; 97B.921; 97B.925; 115A.07, subdivision 1; 115A.12, subdivision 1; 115A.14, subdivision 5; 115A.162; 116C.57, subdivision 3; 116E.03, subdivision 9; 116J.72; 120.17, subdivision 5a; 121.904, subdivisions 11a and 11b; 122.541, subdivision 2; 124.01, subdivision 1; 124.195, subdivisions 8 and 9; 124.2138, subdivisions 3 and 4; 124.32, subdivision 1c; 124.472; 126.39, subdivision 11; 136.44; 136A.04, subdivision 2; 136A.06; 136D.28, subdivision 2; 136D.89, subdivision 2; 147.09; 152.02, subdivision 12; 160.283, subdivision 1; 171.05, subdivision 3; 174.255, subdivisions 1 and 2; 174.29, subdivision 1; 176.83, subdivision 7; 177.24, subdivision 2; 179A.12, subdivision 1; 182.651, subdivision 18; 193.141, subdivision 2; 193.145, subdivision 2; 214.01, subdivision 3; 219.691; 219.692; 219.743; 219.755; 222.61; 241.31, subdivision 2; 243.24, subdivision 2; 246.51, subdivision 1; 246A.02; 246A.11, subdivision 1; 246A.12, subdivisions 1 and 7; 246A.13, subdivision 1; 250.05, subdivision 2; 256.12, subdivision 14; 256.462, subdivision 2; 256B.03, subdivision 2; 257.34, subdivision 1; 260.015, subdivision 3; 260.151, subdivision 1; 268.072, subdivision 6; 271.15; 273.13, subdivision 22; 275.125, subdivisions 6a, 8, and 11c; 278.06; 290.01, subdivision 20b; 295.34, subdivision 1; 296.14, subdivision 4; 297.03, subdivision 3; 297A.06; 297A.25, subdivision 10; 308.341; 317.03; 317.65, subdivision 6; 319A.03; 319A.05; 319A.12, subdivisions 1a and 2; 322A.70; 326.03, subdivision 2; 326.06; 327.18, subdivision 3; 327C.07, subdivision 3a; 349.2121, subdivision 3; 354.05, subdivision 2; 355.311, subdivision 1; 361.26, subdivision 2; 366.095, subdivision 1; 378.43, subdivision 1; 383A.404, subdivision 7; 383B.035, subdivision 1; 383B.237; 383C.76; 386.71; 393.13, subdivision 1; 412.381; 412.501; 447.42, subdivision 2; 453.53, subdivision 3; 458A.03, subdivision 8; 458C.17; 462.601; 462.605; 462A.04, subdivision 8; 462A.05, subdivision 18; 462A.20, subdivision 3; 462C.04, subdivision 2; 462C.12, subdivision 2; 471.467, subdivision 1; 471.74, subdivision 2; 471.993, subdivision 1; 471A.03, subdivision 2; 473.149, subdivision 4; 473.181, subdivision 3; 473.811, subdivisions 6, 7, 8, and 9; 473F.06; 473F.07, subdivision 1; 473F.09; 474A.09; 604.06; 609.53, subdivisions 1 and 1a; 609.687, subdivision 4; 611.14; 626A.05, subdivision 2; 645.02; amending Laws 1982, chapter 523, article 30, section 4, subdivision 1; and Laws 1986, chapter 399, article 1, section 17; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 193.145, subdivision 3; and

325D.69, subdivision 1; repealing Laws 1986, chapter 463, section 3; and Laws 1986, First Special Session chapter 3, article 1, section 84.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

### REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Employment, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1093: A bill for an act relating to employees; providing for a wage protection program; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 181.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 14, after "4" insert a comma and delete "those" and insert "*remuneration for services provided by an employee to an employer which is*"

Page 1, line 15, delete "wages" and insert "*such remuneration*"

Page 2, line 7, delete "may" and insert "shall" and delete the second "the" and insert "an"

Page 2, line 14, delete the comma and after "\$200" insert a comma

Page 2, line 15, delete "shall" and insert "must"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Employment, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1110: A bill for an act relating to labor; regulating mediation, fact finding, and other functions of the bureau of mediation services; providing for violations of the labor union democracy act; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 179.02, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 179.07; 179.08; 179.083; 179.22; 179.38; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 179; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 179.05; 179.23; and 179.24.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Employment, to which was referred

S.F. No. 916: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; providing a permanent partial disability rating for certain losses; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 176.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, D.M. from the Committee on Governmental Operations, to which was referred

S.F. No. 494: A bill for an act relating to the Duluth airport authority; providing that authority employees hired after a certain date are not covered by any civil service system.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 1, strike the semicolon

Page 2, lines 7 to 9, delete the new language

Page 2, line 9, after the period, insert "*No employee hired after June 20, 1969, is subject to a civil service system, but is covered by chapter 353 and sections 197.455 and 197.46.*"

Page 2, after line 9, insert:

"Sec. 2. [APPLICATION TO LEGAL ACTIONS.]

*This act governs a cause of action arising after January 30, 1987.*"

Renumber the sections in sequence

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, D.M. from the Committee on Governmental Operations, to which was referred

S.F. No. 981: A bill for an act relating to state government; providing for affirmative action improvements; regulating job eligibility lists; providing for the title of state agency heads; regulating hiring and personnel practices; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 15.06, subdivision 1; 15.46; 43A.08, subdivision 1; 43A.13, subdivisions 1 and 7; 43A.18, subdivision 4; 43A.191, subdivision 3; 43A.24, subdivision 2; 43A.30, subdivision 4; 43A.33, subdivision 3; 43A.34, subdivision 3; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 15.45, subdivision 3; 15.47; and 43A.34, subdivisions 1 and 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, delete section 3 and insert:

"Sec. 3. [15.461] [EPIDEMIOLOGIC STUDIES.]

*The commissioner of health may conduct epidemiologic studies necessary to investigate, prevent, or reduce morbidity or mortality among state employees. Solely for the purposes of those studies or investigations, the commissioner has access to data on individual state employees, including data classified as private or confidential under chapter 13.*"

Page 6, line 20, delete "*which*" and insert "*that*"

Page 6, line 21, delete "*have justification for*" and insert "*fails to justify*"

Page 6, line 22, delete "75" and insert "25"

Page 7, line 36, reinstate the stricken language

Page 8, lines 1 and 2, reinstate the stricken language

Page 8, lines 5, 8, and 10, reinstate the stricken language and delete the new language

Page 9, line 20, after "from" insert "determining"

Page 10, after line 36, insert:

"Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 43A.34, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [MANDATORY RETIREMENT AGE.] Employees in the executive branch who are subject to the provisions of the Minnesota state retirement system or the teacher's retirement association *and who are serving as faculty members or administrators under a contract of unlimited terms or similar arrangement providing for unlimited tenure at an institution of higher education, as defined in section 1201(a) of the federal Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended through January 1, 1987,* must retire from employment by the state upon reaching the age of 70, except as provided in other law. *Other employees in the executive branch who are subject to the provisions of the Minnesota state retirement system or the teacher's retirement association, except as provided in subdivision 3 or 4, or as provided in section 354.44, subdivision 1a, shall not be subject to a mandatory retirement age provision."*

Page 11, after line 29, insert:

"Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 43A.34, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [STATE PATROL, CONSERVATION AND CRIME BUREAU OFFICERS EXEMPTED.] Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, (a) conservation officers and crime bureau officers who were first employed on or after July 1, 1973 and who are members of the state patrol retirement fund by reason of their employment, and members of the Minnesota state patrol division of the department of public safety who are members of the state patrol retirement association by reason of their employment, shall not continue employment after attaining the age of 60 years, except for a fractional portion of one year that will enable the employee to complete the employee's next full year of allowable service as defined pursuant to section 352B.01, subdivision 3; and (b) conservation officers and crime bureau officers who were first employed and are members of the state patrol retirement fund by reason of their employment before July 1, 1973, shall not continue employment after attaining the age ~~specified in subdivision 4~~ of 70 years.

Sec. 15. [WAIVER OF STATUTES, RULES, AND ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES FOR EXPERIMENTAL OR RESEARCH PROJECTS.]

*The commissioner of employee relations may conduct experimental or research projects designed to improve recruitment, selection, referral, or appointment processes for the filling of state classified positions. Any provision of Minnesota Statutes, sections 43A.09 to 43A.15, associated personnel rules adopted under section 43A.04, subdivision 3, or administrative procedures established under section 43A.04, subdivision 4, is waived for the purpose of these projects. This waiver is limited to no more than five percent of appointments made under the waived provisions in the preceding fiscal year. The commissioner shall report by March 1, 1988, and January 15, 1989, to the legislative commission on employee relations*



*the results of the experimental or research projects."*

Page 12, line 4, delete "*subdivisions 1 and*" and insert "*subdivision*"

Page 12, line 5, delete "3" and insert "15"

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 5, after the semicolon, insert "giving the commissioner of health access to private or confidential data on individual state employees for purposes of epidemiologic studies; setting a mandatory retirement age for certain employees and abolishing it for others;"

Page 1, line 11, delete "*subdivision*" and insert "*subdivisions 1,*" and after "3" insert ", and 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 15"

Page 1, line 13, delete "*subdivisions 1 and*" and insert "*subdivision*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 927: A bill for an act relating to driver's licenses; providing for a medical alert identifier; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 171.07, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 637: A bill for an act relating to transportation; creating a state institutions town road account; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 162.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 161.082, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. An amount equal to 20 percent of the county turnback account must be expended; ~~within counties having two or more towns~~, on town road bridge structures that are 10 feet or more in length and on town road culverts that replace existing town road bridges. In addition, if the present bridge structure is less than ten feet in length but a hydrological survey indicates that the replacement bridge structure or culvert must be ten feet or more in length, then the bridge or culvert is eligible for replacement funds. The expenditures on bridge structures and culverts may be on a matching basis, and if on a matching basis, not more than 90 percent of the cost of a bridge structure or culvert may be paid from the county turnback account.

An amount equal to 37 percent of the county turnback account must be set aside as a town road account and distributed as provided in section 162.081.

Sec. 2. [162.55] [STATE INSTITUTIONS ROAD AND HIGHWAY ACCOUNT.]

*A state institutions road and highway account is created in the state treasury. Money in the account is appropriated to the commissioner of transportation to pay state aid to towns, cities, and counties to maintain and improve roads, streets, and highways that:*

- (1) do not otherwise receive state aid under this chapter; and*
- (2) provide substantial access to a state institution or a unit of the state outdoor recreation system as defined in section 86A.04.*

*The balance in the account must not be canceled. Distribution of money in the account is governed by a committee appointed by the commissioner of transportation, consisting of a county highway engineer, a county board member, a city council member, and two town supervisors. Roads, streets, and highways maintained or improved with money from this account must meet the same maintenance standards that apply to roads, streets, and highways that are maintained or improved with money from the state-aid system, except that town roads maintained with money from this account must meet the maintenance standards that apply to town roads maintained with money from the town road account in the county state-aid highway fund.*

Sec. 3. [APPROPRIATION.]

*The sum of \$\_\_\_\_\_ is appropriated from the general fund to the state institutions road and highway account created in section 2."*

Delete the title and insert:

*"A bill for an act relating to transportation; creating a state institutions road and highway account; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 161.082, subdivision 2a; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 162."*

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 451: A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; providing for handicapped license plate and handicapped parking certificate conferring certain parking privileges; establishing designated handicapped parking spaces; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 168.021, subdivisions 1, 1a, 3, and 5; 169.345; and 169.346, subdivisions 1 and 3; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 7.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [SPECIAL PLATES; APPLICATION FOR ISSUANCE.] When a motor vehicle registered under section 168.017, or a self-propelled recreational vehicle, is owned or primarily operated by a *permanently*

physically handicapped person, the owner may apply for and secure from the registrar of motor vehicles two license ~~number~~ plates with attached emblems, one plate to be attached to the front, and one to the rear of the vehicle. Application for ~~issuance of these~~ the plates must be made at the time of renewal or first application for registration. *When the owner first applies for the plates, the owner must submit a physician's statement on a form developed by the commissioner under section 169.345.*

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 1a, is amended to read:

Subd. 1a. [SCOPE OF PRIVILEGE.] If ~~any a~~ physically handicapped person parks a vehicle displaying license plates described in this section or any person parks ~~such a the~~ vehicle ~~while transporting~~ for a physically handicapped person, that person shall be entitled to ~~courtesy in the parking of park~~ the vehicle and be relieved of any liability with respect to parking except as provided in sections 169.32 and 169.34; provided that any municipal governing body may, by ordinance, prohibit parking on any street or highway for the purpose of creating a fire lane, or to provide for the accommodation of heavy traffic during morning and afternoon rush hours and the privileges extended to handicapped persons shall not apply on streets or highways where and at the time parking is prohibited. The license plates specified in this section shall also serve to identify vehicles properly parked in designated handicapped parking spaces, as provided in section 169.346 ~~as provided in section 169.345.~~

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [DESIGN OF PLATES; FURNISHING BY REGISTRAR.] The registrar of motor vehicles shall design and furnish two license number plates with attached emblems to each ~~such~~ eligible owner. The emblem ~~shall must~~ bear the internationally accepted wheelchair symbol, as designated in section 16.8632, approximately three inches square. The emblem ~~shall must~~ be of ~~such~~ size as large enough to be visible plainly from a distance of 50 feet. ~~Applicants~~ An applicant eligible for ~~these the~~ special plates shall pay the motor vehicle registration fee authorized by law less a credit of \$1 for each month registered.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [PENALTIES FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF PLATE PLATES.] A person who ~~appropriates or~~ uses the plate plates provided in under this section ~~upon~~ on a motor vehicle ~~other than as authorized by~~ in violation of this section is guilty of a gross misdemeanor, and is subject to a fine of \$500. This subdivision does not preclude a person who is not physically handicapped from operating a vehicle ~~upon which these bearing the~~ plates are displayed where if the person is the owner of the vehicle and permits its operation by a physically handicapped person, or ~~where~~ if the person operates the vehicle with the consent of the owner who is physically handicapped. A ~~nonhandicapped~~ driver who is not handicapped is not entitled to the parking privileges provided in this section and in section 169.346 unless ~~transporting parking the vehicle for~~ a physically handicapped person.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. [DEFINITIONS.] For the purposes of this section, ~~a the~~ term

"physically handicapped person" means a person who has sustained an amputation or material disability of either or both arms or legs, or who has been otherwise disabled in any manner, rendering it difficult and burdensome for the person to walk has the meaning given it in section 169.345.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [DRIVERS DRIVER'S LICENSE LAW NOT AFFECTED.] Nothing in this section shall be construed to revoke, limit, or amend any of the terms of the drivers license law chapter 171.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.345, is amended to read:

169.345 [PARKING PRIVILEGES FOR PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED.]

Subdivision 1. [SCOPE OF PRIVILEGE.] Any physically handicapped person who displays prominently upon the vehicle parked by or under the direction and for the use of the handicapped person, A vehicle that prominently displays the distinguishing certificate specified in authorized by this section shall be entitled to courtesy in the parking of the vehicle and be relieved of any liability with respect to parking except as provided in sections 169.32 and 169.34; provided that any municipal governing body, or bears license plates issued under section 168.021, may be parked by or for a physically handicapped person:

(1) in a designated handicapped parking space, as provided in section 169.346;

(2) in a limited time parking space without regard to the posted time limit; and

(3) in a metered parking space without obligation to pay the meter fee.

Notwithstanding clauses (1) to (3), this section does not permit parking in areas prohibited by sections 169.32 and 169.34, in designated no parking spaces, or in parking spaces reserved for specified purposes or vehicles. A local governmental unit may, by ordinance, prohibit parking on any street or highway for the purpose of creating to create a fire lane, or to provide for the accommodation of accommodate heavy traffic during morning and afternoon rush hours and the privileges extended to such handicapped persons shall not these ordinances also apply on streets or highways where and at such time parking is prohibited. The certificate specified in this section shall also serve to identify vehicles properly parked in designated handicapped parking spaces as provided in section 169.346 to physically handicapped persons.

Subd. 2. [DEFINITIONS.] For the purpose of this section "physically handicapped person" means any a person who has sustained an amputation or material disability of either or both arms or legs, or who has been otherwise disabled in any manner rendering it difficult and burdensome to walk:

(1) because of disability cannot walk without significant risk of falling;

(2) because of disability cannot walk 200 feet without stopping to rest;

(3) because of disability cannot walk without the aid of another person, a walker, a cane, crutches, braces, a prosthetic device, or requires the use of a wheelchair;

(4) is restricted by a respiratory disease to such an extent that the person's

*forced (respiratory) expiratory volume for one second, when measured by spirometry, is less than one meter;*

*(5) has an arterial oxygen tension (PAO<sub>2</sub>) of less than 60 mm/hg on room air at rest;*

*(6) uses portable oxygen; or*

*(7) has a cardiac condition to the extent that the person's functional limitations are classified in severity as class III or class IV according to standards set by the American Heart Association.*

*Subd. 2a. [PHYSICIAN'S STATEMENT.] The commissioner shall develop a form for the physician's statement. The statement must be signed by a licensed physician who certifies that the applicant is a physically handicapped person as defined in subdivision 2. The commissioner may request additional information from the physician if needed to verify the applicant's eligibility. The physician's statement must specify whether the disability is permanent or temporary, and if temporary, the opinion of the physician as to the duration of the disability. A physician who fraudulently certifies to the commissioner that a person is a physically handicapped person as defined in subdivision 2, and that the person is entitled to the license plates authorized by section 168.021 or to the certificate authorized by this section, is guilty of a misdemeanor and is subject to a fine of \$500.*

*Subd. 3. [IDENTIFYING CERTIFICATE.] (a) The division of driver and vehicle services in the department of public safety shall issue without charge a special identifying certificate for a marked motor vehicle to any when a physically handicapped applicant upon submission by the applicant of a certificate by a qualified physician to the division that the applicant is a physically handicapped person within the meaning of subdivision 2 submits a physician's statement. The commissioner shall issue a single type of certificate to both permanently and temporarily physically handicapped persons. The certificate is valid for the duration of the person's disability, as specified in the physician's statement, up to a maximum of five years. A person with a disability of longer duration will be required to renew the certificate for additional periods of time, up to five years each, as specified in the physician's statement.*

*(b) Upon submission of satisfactory evidence When the commissioner is satisfied that a motor vehicle is used primarily for the purpose of transporting physically handicapped persons within the meaning of subdivision 2, the division may issue without charge a special identifying certificate or insignia for the vehicle. The operator of the a vehicle, when displaying the certificate or insignia, has the same parking privileges provided in subdivision 1 for the physically handicapped during the period while the vehicle is in use for transporting physically handicapped persons. The certificate issued to a person transporting physically handicapped persons must be renewed every third year. On application and renewal, the person must present evidence that the vehicle continues to be used for transporting physically handicapped persons.*

*The commissioner of public safety shall determine the form, size and promulgate rules governing their issuance and use necessary to carry out the provisions of this section. The physician's certificate shall specify whether the disability is permanent or temporary, and if temporary, the opinion of the physician as to the duration of the disability. The commissioner may issue special identifying certificates to temporarily physically*

handicapped persons for limited periods of time.

(c) A certificate must be made of plastic or similar durable material, must be distinct from certificates issued before December 31, 1987, and must bear its expiration date prominently on its face. The commissioner may charge a fee of \$5 for issuance or renewal of a certificate, and a fee of \$5 for a duplicate to replace a lost, stolen, or damaged certificate.

Subd. 4. [UNAUTHORIZED USE; REVOCATION; PENALTY.] If the police of the state or any city, or other local government shall find a peace officer finds that the certificate is being improperly used, ~~they~~ the officer shall report the violation to the division of driver and vehicle services in the department of public safety ~~any violation~~ and the commissioner of public safety may ~~remove~~ revoke the ~~privilege~~ certificate. A person who uses the certificate in violation of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor and is subject to a fine of \$500.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.346, is amended to read:

169.346 [PARKING FOR PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED; PROHIBITIONS; PENALTIES.]

Subdivision 1. [PARKING CRITERIA.] ~~No~~ A person shall not:

(1) park a motor vehicle in or obstruct access to a parking space designated and reserved for the physically handicapped, on either private or public property;

(2) park a motor vehicle in or obstruct access to an area designated by a local governmental unit as a handicapped transfer zone; or

(3) exercise the parking privilege provided in section 169.345, unless:

(a) (i) that person is a physically handicapped person as defined in section 169.345, subdivision 2, or the person is transporting or parking a vehicle for a physically handicapped person; and

(b) (ii) the vehicle visibly displays ~~the certificate or one of the following:~~ a license plate issued to physically handicapped persons or the under section 168.021, a certificate issued to persons transporting physically handicapped persons by the department of public safety pursuant to under section 169.345, subdivision 3, or 168.021, or if the vehicle visibly displays an equivalent certificate, insignia, or license plate issued by another state or one of its political subdivisions.

Subd. 2. [SIGNS; PARKING SPACES TO BE FREE OF OBSTRUCTIONS.] (a) Handicapped parking spaces must be designated and identified by the posting of signs incorporating the international symbol of access in white on blue and indicating that the parking space is reserved for the handicapped persons with vehicles displaying the required certificate, license plates, or insignia. Spaces ~~which have been that are~~ clearly identified for handicapped parking by signs ~~which that~~ are not in compliance with the design standards as set forth in this subdivision shall also be deemed designated and reserved for the physically handicapped for the purposes of this section. A sign posted for the purpose of this section must be visible from inside a vehicle parked in the space, be kept clear of snow or other obstructions which block its visibility, and be nonmovable or only movable by authorized persons.

(b) The owner or manager of the property on which the designated parking space is located shall ensure that the space is kept free of ob-

*struction. If the owner or manager allows the space to be blocked by snow, merchandise, or similar obstructions for 24 hours after receiving a warning from a peace officer, the owner or manager is guilty of a misdemeanor and subject to a fine of \$500.*

Subd. 3. [PENALTY.] ~~Any~~ A person who violates the provisions of subdivision 1 is guilty of a ~~petty~~ misdemeanor and shall be fined ~~not less than \$25 nor more than \$100~~ \$500. This subdivision shall be enforced in the same manner as parking ordinances or regulations ~~are enforced~~ in the governmental subdivision in which the violation occurs. Law enforcement officers have the authority to tag vehicles parked on either private or public property in violation of the provisions of subdivision 1. A physically handicapped person, or a person parking a vehicle for a handicapped person, who is charged with violating subdivision 1 because the person parked in a handicapped parking space without the required certificate or ~~insignia~~ license plates shall not be convicted ~~upon producing~~ if the person produces in court or ~~prior to~~ before the court appearance the required certificate or ~~insignia~~ evidence that the person has been issued license plates under section 168.021, and demonstrates entitlement to the certificate or ~~insignia~~ plates at the time of arrest or tagging.

#### Sec. 9. [TRANSITION.]

*From January 1, 1988, to December 31, 1988, the owner of a vehicle with license plates issued under section 168.021 before January 1, 1988, must reapply for the plates and submit the physician's statement required under section 169.345, subdivision 2a, to the commissioner when the registration for the plates expires. A certificate issued under section 169.345 before January 1, 1988, expires on December 31, 1988, unless it is reissued by the commissioner before that date. The commissioner of public safety shall develop and implement an informational campaign to notify the public and holders of certificates and license plates issued before January 1, 1988, of the need to reapply for certificates and license plates and of other changes made by sections 1 to 8 in the certificate and license plate program for physically handicapped persons. The council for the handicapped shall assist the commissioner and officials charged with enforcing municipal parking restrictions in the implementation of sections 1 to 8.*

#### Sec. 10. [REPEALER.]

*Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 7, is repealed.*

#### Sec. 11. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

*Sections 1 to 8 and 10 are effective January 1, 1988. Section 9 is effective the day following final enactment."*

Delete the title and insert:

*"A bill for an act relating to public safety; parking for handicapped persons; imposing a fine for violations of handicapped parking provisions; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 168.021, subdivisions 1, 1a, 2, 3, 5, and 6; 169.345; and 169.346; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 168.021, subdivision 7."*

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davis from the Committee on Agriculture, to which was referred

S.F. No. 884: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; appropriating money for demonstration project involving production of butanol and ethanol from sweet sorghum.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 8, delete "\$394,000" and insert "\$\_\_\_\_\_"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davis from the Committee on Agriculture, to which was referred

S.F. No. 364: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; reactivating the agricultural data collection task force; appropriating money; amending Laws 1985, chapter 19, section 6, subdivision 6, as amended.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 17, strike "January" and insert "April" and delete "1988" and insert "1989"

Page 1, line 19, strike "March" and insert "June" and delete "1988" and insert "1989"

Page 1, line 24, delete "March 1, 1988" and insert "June 30, 1989"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Solon from the Committee on Commerce, to which was referred

S.F. No. 793: A bill for an act relating to commerce; consumer protection; requiring the repair, refund, or replacement of new motor vehicles under certain circumstances; prescribing certain arbitration procedures for all automobile manufacturers doing business and offering express warranties on their vehicles sold in Minnesota; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 325F665.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 21, strike "procedure or"

Page 4, line 5, delete "shall have" and insert "has"

Page 5, line 32, delete "shall" and insert "does"

Page 6, line 26, delete "shall have" and insert "has"

Page 6, line 35, delete "shall" and insert "must"

Page 7, line 8, before the period, insert "as set forth in subdivision 3"

Page 8, line 8, strike "PROCEDURE" and insert "MECHANISM"

Page 8, line 14, strike "procedure" and insert "mechanism located in the state of Minnesota"

Page 8, line 19, strike "procedure" and insert "mechanism"



Page 8, line 21, delete "*procedure*" and insert "*mechanism*"

Page 8, line 23, strike "*procedure*" and delete "*or*"

Page 8, line 35, delete "*mechanism from considering*" and insert "*consideration of*"

Page 9, line 3, strike "*procedure*" and insert "*mechanism*"

Page 9, line 16, strike the comma

Page 9, lines 19 and 20, delete "*procedure*" and insert "*mechanism's meeting*"

Page 9, line 29, after "*to*" insert "*appear and*"

Page 9, line 30, after "*presentation*" insert "*in the state of Minnesota*"

Page 9, line 31, before the comma, insert "*or by telephone*"

Page 9, line 35, delete "*shall*" and insert "*may*"

Page 10, line 11, delete "*shall*" and insert "*must*"

Page 10, lines 27 and 32, delete "*procedure*" and insert "*mechanism*"

Page 10, line 28, delete "*shall*" and insert "*may*"

Page 11, line 1, delete "*procedure*" and insert "*mechanism*" and delete "*shall*" and insert "*may*"

Page 11, line 4, delete "*PROCEDURE*" and insert "*MECHANISM*"

Page 11, lines 11 and 25, delete "*procedure*" and insert "*mechanism*"

Page 11, line 27, delete "*that is*"

Page 12, line 10, after "*consumer*" insert a semicolon

Page 12, line 11, after "*that*" insert a comma

Page 12, line 24, delete "*shall*" and insert "*may*"

Page 12, after line 25, insert:

"Sec. 2. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

*Section 1 is effective August 1, 1987, and applies to all motor vehicles that are still under an applicable express manufacturer's warranty and which were originally delivered to the consumer during the previous one-year period.*"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 5, delete "*procedures*" and insert "*mechanisms*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Employment, to which was referred

S.F. No. 701: A bill for an act relating to labor; prohibiting certain terminations; requiring notice of reasons for terminations; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 181.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, delete lines 29 to 32 and insert:

*"Subdivision 1. [NOTICE REQUIRED.] An employee who has been involuntarily terminated may, within five working days following such termination, request in writing that the employer inform the employee of the reason for the termination. Within five working days following receipt of such request, an employer shall inform the terminated employee in writing of the reason for the termination."*

Page 3, delete lines 2 and 3 and insert *"The department of labor and industry shall promulgate rules for notification of employees by employers of an employee's rights under sections 1 to 5."*

Page 3, line 4, after "REMEDIES" insert "; PENALTY"

Page 3, line 5, before "In" insert "(a)" and delete the second "any" and insert "an"

Page 3, line 6, delete "person" and insert "employee" and delete "sections 2 to 4" and insert "section 2"

Page 3, after line 10, insert:

*"(b) An employer who failed to notify, as required under section 3 or 4, an employee injured by a violation of section 2 is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed \$750 per injured employee."*

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "providing a penalty;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on General Legislation and Public Gaming, to which was referred

S.F. No. 2: A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution, article XIII, section 5; allowing the legislature to authorize certain lotteries.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. [PROPOSED AMENDMENT.]

*The following amendment to the Minnesota Constitution is proposed to the people. If the amendment is adopted, article XIII, section 5, will read as follows:*

*Sec. 5. The legislature shall not authorize any lottery or the sale of lottery tickets, other than a lottery operated by the state.*

Sec. 2. [SUBMISSION TO VOTERS.]

*The proposed amendment shall be submitted to the people at the 1988 general election. The question submitted shall be:*

*"Shall the Minnesota Constitution be amended to permit the legislature to authorize a lottery operated by the state?"*

Yes \_\_\_\_\_  
 No \_\_\_\_\_ " "

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, delete "certain lotteries" and insert "the state to operate a lottery"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H.F. No. 28 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
28	148				

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H.F. No. 28 be amended as follows:

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 28 and insert the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 148, the first engrossment; further, delete the title of H.F. No. 28 and insert the title of S.F. No. 148, the first engrossment.

And when so amended H.F. No. 28 will be identical to S.F. No. 148, and further recommends that H.F. No. 28 be given its second reading and substituted for S.F. No. 148, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H.F. No. 123 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
123	287				

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H.F. No. 123 be amended as follows:

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 123 and insert the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 287, the first engrossment; further, delete the title of H.F. No. 123 and insert the title of S.F. No. 287, the first engrossment.

And when so amended H.F. No. 123 will be identical to S.F. No. 287, and further recommends that H.F. No. 123 be given its second reading and substituted for S.F. No. 287, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H.F. No. 312 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
		312	438		

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H.F. No. 134 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
				134	182

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H.F. No. 134 be amended as follows:

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 134 and insert the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 182, the third engrossment; further, delete the title of H.F. No. 134 and insert the title of S.F. No. 182, the third engrossment.

And when so amended H.F. No. 134 will be identical to S.F. No. 182, and further recommends that H.F. No. 134 be given its second reading and substituted for S.F. No. 182, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S.F. Nos. 1110, 916, 494, 981, 927, 451, 793 and 701 were read the second time.

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H.F. Nos. 28, 123, 312 and 134 were read the second time.

**MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS**

Mr. Mehrkens moved that his name be stricken as chief author, shown as a co-author and the name of Mr. Morse be added as chief author to S.F. No. 145. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. moved that the name of Mr. Hughes be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 247. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chmielewski moved that the name of Mr. DeCramer be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 899. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chmielewski moved that the name of Mr. Stumpf be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 954. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. moved that the name of Mr. Novak be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1032. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Willet moved that the name of Mr. Vickerman be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1039. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Luther moved that the name of Mr. Anderson be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1123. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Luther moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1136. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1153. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Schmitz moved that the name of Mr. Purfeerst be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1155. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1171. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1177. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1178. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 7: A Senate concurrent resolution proclaiming 1987 as Minnesota Veterans Home Centennial Year.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Johnson, D.E. introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 43: A Senate resolution commending Margaret Jacobson of Broton, Minnesota, for 42 years of extraordinary teaching.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Taylor introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 44: A Senate resolution congratulating the girls basketball team from Mankato East High School for winning the Class AA State High School Girls Basketball Championship.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Benson moved that S.F. No. 449, No. 18 on General Orders, be

stricken and re-referred to the Committee on Finance. The motion prevailed.

### CALENDAR

S.F. No. 121: A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; clarifying that a child under four is not required to use a seat belt; imposing penalty for failure to wear seat belt; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.686, subdivision 1.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 34 and nays 30, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Beckman	Diessner	Knutson	Mehrrens	Piper
Berglin	Frank	Laidig	Merriam	Pogemiller
Brandl	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Reichgott
Brataas	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Spear
Cohen	Freeman	Luther	Pehler	Storm
Dahl	Hughes	Marty	Peterson, D.C.	Wegscheid
DeCramer	Knaak	McQuaid	Peterson, R.W.	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Adkins	Chmielewski	Johnson, D.J.	Moe, D.M.	Samuelson
Anderson	Davis	Jude	Moe, R.D.	Schmitz
Benson	Dicklich	Kroening	Morse	Stumpf
Berg	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Purfeerst	Taylor
Bernhagen	Gustafson	Lessard	Ramstad	Vickerman
Bertram	Johnson, D.E.	Metzen	Renneke	Willet

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H.F. No. 23: A bill for an act relating to health; requiring hospitals to establish a protocol to obtain organs for transplantation; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 525.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 63 and nays 1, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	DeCramer	Knaak	Metzen	Reichgott
Anderson	Dicklich	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke
Beckman	Diessner	Kroening	Moe, R.D.	Samuelson
Benson	Frank	Laidig	Morse	Schmitz
Berg	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Spear
Berglin	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pehler	Taylor
Bertram	Freeman	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Vickerman
Brandl	Gustafson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Waldorf
Brataas	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Wegscheid
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Pogemiller	Willet
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrrens	Purfeerst	
Davis	Jude	Merriam	Ramstad	

Mr. Chmielewski voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S.F. No. 324: A bill for an act relating to traffic regulations; removing exemptions regarding alcohol- or controlled substance-related activities of persons engaged in work upon the highway; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.03, subdivision 6.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 64 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Davis	Jude	Merriam	Ramstad
Anderson	DeCramer	Knaak	Metzen	Reichgott
Beckman	Dicklich	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke
Benson	Diessner	Kroening	Moe, R.D.	Samuelson
Berg	Frank	Laidig	Morse	Schmitz
Berglin	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Stumpf
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pehler	Taylor
Brandl	Freeman	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Vickerman
Brataas	Gustafson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Wegscheid
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Pogemiller	Willet
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkins	Purfeerst	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S.F. No. 420: A bill for an act relating to crimes; metropolitan transit; authorizing peace officers hired by the metropolitan transit commission to make arrests within the metropolitan area; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 629.40, by adding a subdivision.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 63 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Davis	Jude	Merriam	Ramstad
Anderson	DeCramer	Knaak	Metzen	Reichgott
Beckman	Dicklich	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke
Benson	Diessner	Kroening	Moe, R.D.	Samuelson
Berg	Frank	Laidig	Morse	Schmitz
Berglin	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Stumpf
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pehler	Taylor
Brandl	Freeman	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Vickerman
Brataas	Gustafson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Wegscheid
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Pogemiller	
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkins	Purfeerst	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H.F. No. 202: A bill for an act relating to corporations; providing for modification of the personal liability of directors; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 300.45; and 300.64, by adding a subdivision.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 62 and nays 2, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Bernhagen	Dahl	Frederick	Johnson, D.E.
Anderson	Bertram	Davis	Frederickson, D.J.	Johnson, D.J.
Beckman	Brandl	DeCramer	Frederickson, D.R.	Knutson
Benson	Brataas	Dicklich	Freeman	Kroening
Berg	Chmielewski	Diessner	Gustafson	Laidig
Berglin	Cohen	Frank	Hughes	Langseth

Lantry	Merriam	Pehler	Reichgott	Vickerman
Larson	Metzen	Peterson, D.C.	Renneke	Waldorf
Lessard	Moe, D.M.	Peterson, R.W.	Samuelson	Wegscheid
Luther	Moe, R.D.	Piper	Schmitz	Willet
Marty	Morse	Pogemiller	Spear	
McQuaid	Novak	Purfeerst	Stumpf	
Mehrkens	Olson	Ramstad	Taylor	

Messrs. Jude and Knaak voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### CONSENT CALENDAR

H.F. No. 364: A bill for an act relating to cemeteries; increasing the limit on the permanent care and improvement fund; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 306.41.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 59 and nays 1, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Dahl	Jude	Merriam	Ramstad
Anderson	Davis	Knaak	Metzen	Reichgott
Beckman	DeCramer	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke
Benson	Diessner	Laidig	Morse	Samuelson
Berg	Frank	Langseth	Novak	Schmitz
Berglin	Frederick	Lantry	Olson	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.J.	Larson	Pehler	Stumpf
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Taylor
Brandl	Freeman	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Vickerman
Brataas	Gustafson	Marty	Piper	Wegscheid
Chmielewski	Hughes	McQuaid	Pogemiller	Willet
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	Mehrkens	Purfeerst	

Mr. Kroening voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H.F. No. 348: A bill for an act relating to Cook county; permitting the sale of certain land.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 63 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Davis	Jude	Merriam	Reichgott
Anderson	DeCramer	Knaak	Metzen	Renneke
Beckman	Dicklich	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Samuelson
Benson	Diessner	Kroening	Moe, R.D.	Schmitz
Berg	Frank	Laidig	Morse	Spear
Berglin	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Taylor
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pehler	Vickerman
Brandl	Freeman	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Waldorf
Brataas	Gustafson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Wegscheid
Chmielewski	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Willet
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Pogemiller	
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkens	Ramstad	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.



H.F. No. 11: A bill for an act relating to tax forfeited land; providing for the sale of a certain tract.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 64 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Davis	Jude	Merriam	Ramstad
Anderson	DeCramer	Knaak	Metzen	Reichgott
Beckman	Dicklich	Knutson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke
Benson	Diessner	Kroening	Moe, R.D.	Samuelson
Berg	Frank	Laidig	Morse	Schmitz
Berglin	Frederick	Langseth	Novak	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Olson	Stumpf
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pehler	Taylor
Brandl	Freeman	Lessard	Peterson, D.C.	Vickerman
Brataas	Gustafson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Wegscheid
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Pogemiller	Willet
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrken	Purfeerst	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### GENERAL ORDERS

The Senate resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole, with Mr. Hughes in the chair.

After some time spent therein, the committee arose, and Mr. Hughes reported that the committee had considered the following:

S.F. No. 27, which the committee recommends to pass.

S.F. No. 63, which the committee reports progress, subject to the following motions:

Mr. Dahl moved to amend S.F. No. 63 as follows:

Page 2, delete lines 13 to 21 and insert:

"(3) Plates issued for passenger automobiles as defined in section 168.011, subdivision 7, ~~motoreycles, motorized bicycles, and motor scooters~~ shall be issued for a ~~six-year period starting not later than October 1986, or until the next general reissuance of plates every six years thereafter, which ever is less; and the life of the vehicle.~~"

Pages 4 and 5, delete section 4 and insert:

"Sec. 4. [STUDY.]

*The commissioner of public safety shall study license plate technologies using ABS plastic."*

Page 5, delete line 16

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, delete "every six years" and insert "for the life of the vehicle"

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "requiring a study of license plate technologies;"

Mr. Merriam moved to amend the Dahl amendment to S.F. No. 63 as follows:

Page 1, line 9, delete "and insert:"

Page 1, delete lines 10 to 12

Page 1, after line 13, insert:

"Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title amendment as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 17 and 18"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment to the amendment was adopted.

The question recurred on the Dahl amendment, as amended.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 33 and nays 30, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Dahl	Jude	Morse	Renneke
Berg	Davis	Kroening	Pehler	Samuelson
Berglin	Frank	Langseth	Peterson, D.C.	Spear
Bertram	Frederickson, D.R.	Lessard	Peterson, R.W.	Stumpf
Brandl	Freeman	Luther	Pogemiller	Willet
Chmielewski	Gustafson	Marty	Ramstad	
Cohen	Johnson, D.J.	Merriam	Reichgott	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Anderson	Diessner	Knutson	Metzen	Purfeerst
Beckman	Frederick	Laidig	Moe, D.M.	Schmitz
Benson	Frederickson, D.J.	Lantry	Moe, R.D.	Storm
Bernhagen	Hughes	Larson	Novak	Taylor
Brataas	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Olson	Vickerman
DeCramer	Knaak	Mehrkins	Piper	Wegscheid

The motion prevailed. So the Dahl amendment, as amended, was adopted.

S.F. No. 63 was then progressed.

On motion of Mr. Moe, R.D., the report of the Committee of the Whole, as kept by the Secretary, was adopted.

## INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Messrs. Luther, Cohen and Knaak introduced—

S.F. No. 1204: A bill for an act relating to community dispute resolution programs; authorizing the state and municipalities to make grants to programs; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 494.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Luther introduced—

S.F. No. 1205: A bill for an act relating to courts; authorizing additional judgeships in certain judicial districts; authorizing imposition of a judicial fee in civil actions; increasing the amount of penalty assessment levied for traffic offenses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 2.722, subdivision 1; and 626.861, subdivisions 1 and 3; proposing coding for new

law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 480.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Ms. Reichgott, Messrs. Wegscheid, Solon, Freeman and Anderson introduced—

S.F. No. 1206: A bill for an act relating to insurance; correcting certain errors; removing ambiguities; expanding certain insurers' investment authority; authorizing the commissioner to adopt investment rules; providing for miscellaneous changes and clarification; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 60A.11, subdivisions 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 19, 21, 23, 24, 26, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Schmitz introduced—

S.F. No. 1207: A bill for an act relating to waste management; permitting towns to charge a fee for certain deposits; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 115A.921.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1208: A bill for an act relating to coroners; requiring that the office of coroner be elective; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 390.005; and 390.34.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. DeCramer and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1209: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; providing a cattle export program; making export enhancement payments to cattle raisers and exporters; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1210: A bill for an act relating to health; establishing the Minnesota institute for health research; creating a health research trust fund with cigarette and tobacco products taxes; prescribing a floor stocks tax on cigarettes and tobacco products distributors; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 297.02, subdivision 1; 297.03, subdivision 5; 297.13, subdivision 1; 297.32, subdivisions 1, 2, and 9; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 152A; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 297.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Samuelson, Wegscheid, Ramstad and Vickerman introduced—

S.F. No. 1211: A bill for an act relating to health; appropriating money for community health services.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

Messrs. DeCramer, Dicklich, Taylor and Ms. Reichgott introduced—

S.F. No. 1212: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing a task force on financing post-secondary education; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 3.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1213: A bill for an act relating to Morrison county; removing special qualifications for newspapers; repealing Laws 1980, chapter 526.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Mr. Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1214: A bill for an act relating to public employees; providing that public safety dispatchers are essential employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 179A.03, subdivision 7.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mrs. Adkins, Messrs. Jude, Wegscheid and Mrs. Brataas introduced—

S.F. No. 1215: A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing a certification process in the department of transportation for set-aside programs; authorizing rulemaking; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 161.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Moe, D.M. introduced—

S.F. No. 1216: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; providing funds for the Minnesota telecenter project.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

Ms. Piper, Messrs. Luther, Kroening and Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1217: A bill for an act relating to public employees; prohibiting use of strikebreakers during a teacher strike; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 179A.03, by adding a subdivision; and 179A.13, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Laidig introduced—

S.F. No. 1218: A bill for an act relating to the office of the secretary of state; providing for the preservation of land surveys; establishing time for the permanent microfilming of the surveys; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 5.03.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Kroening introduced—

S.F. No. 1219: A bill for an act relating to occupations and professions; providing advertising restrictions for plumbers; imposing penalties; amend-

ing Minnesota Statutes, section 326F75.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Stumpf; Johnson, D.J.; Dicklich and Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1220: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing aid for certain nonpublic tribal schools; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 124.175; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 124.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1221: A bill for an act relating to taxation; increasing the rate of taxes on cigarettes and tobacco products; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 297.02, subdivision 1; 297.03, subdivision 5; 297.32, subdivisions 1 and 2; and 297.35, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1222: A bill for an act relating to firearms; allowing possession of machine guns by ammunition manufacturers for testing purposes only; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 609.67, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Spear, Merriam, Mrs. Lantry and Mr. Moe, D.M. introduced—

S.F. No. 1223: A bill for an act relating to state departments and agencies; creating a commission for the quincennial of the Hispanic presence in the western hemisphere.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 1224: A bill for an act relating to Itasca county; permitting the county to levy a tax for economic development.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Knutson introduced—

S.F. No. 1225: A bill for an act relating to highway traffic regulations; authorizing recreational vehicle combinations and restricting their use; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 169.01, by adding a subdivision; and 169.81, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mr. Willet introduced—

S.F. No. 1226: A bill for an act relating to economic development; providing for the selection of board members of community development corporations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 116M.04, sub-

division 6.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Housing.

Mr. Luther introduced—

S.F. No. 1227: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; reciprocal interstate banking; authorizing acquisitions by those who express a commitment to provide certain forms of affordable credit; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 48.93, subdivision 3; and 48.99, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Morse, Mses. Peterson, D.C.; Reichgott and Mr. Moe, R.D. introduced—

S.F. No. 1228: A bill for an act relating to education; allowing the student council member of the higher education coordinating board to vote; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 136A.02, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Kroening, Merriam, Ms. Peterson, D.C.; Messrs. Johnson, D.J. and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1229: A bill for an act relating to capital improvements; authorizing spending to acquire and to better public land and buildings and other public improvements of a capital nature; authorizing issuance of state bonds; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Finance.

Ms. Piper, Messrs. DeCramer; Moe, D.M.; Moe, R.D. and Renneke introduced—

S.F. No. 1230: A bill for an act relating to the Minnesota state historical society; providing for preservation and interpretation of public areas of the state capitol; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 138.67; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 138.

Referred to the Committee on General Legislation and Public Gaming.

Messrs. Hughes, Dahl, Dicklich, DeCramer and Taylor introduced—

S.F. No. 1231: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing a teacher fellowship program for teachers; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 136A.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Solon, Chmielewski, Gustafson, Novak and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1232: A bill for an act relating to public safety; providing an exception from certain regulations for steam turbines which receive steam from remote municipal facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 183.56.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1233: A bill for an act relating to human services; extending the deadline for community work experience program pilot projects; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 256.737, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Bertram, Morse, DeCramer, Davis and Beckman introduced—

S.F. No. 1234: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; appropriating money for control of pseudorabies in swine herds.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Ms. Peterson, D.C.; Messrs. Merriam, Luther, Spear and Knaak introduced—

S.F. No. 1235: A bill for an act relating to crimes; sexual conduct; prohibiting sexual penetration in a public place; abolishing the crimes of consensual sodomy, fornication, and adultery; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 609; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 609.293; 609.34; and 609.36.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Cohen, Marty and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1236: A bill for an act relating to multifamily housing developments; changing certain income limit restrictions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 462C.05, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Housing.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1237: A bill for an act relating to employment; requiring employees to promptly pay premiums on employee health plans; providing remedies; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 181.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Solon, Mrs. Lantry, Messrs. Gustafson, Bernhagen and Vickerman introduced—

S.F. No. 1238: A bill for an act relating to human services; including certain pension costs as operating costs for purposes of nursing home reimbursement; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 256B.431, subdivision 2b.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Pehler; Johnson, D.E.; Metzen and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1239: A bill for an act relating to retirement; authorizing reimbursement of retired members of the state patrol retirement fund for the cost of medicare supplemental insurance; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 352B.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Stumpf and Willet introduced—

S.F. No. 1240: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; authorizing the taking of elk and amending related laws; authorizing compensation for certain crop damage caused by elk; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 97A.421, subdivision 6; 97A.431; 97A.465, subdivisions 1 and 3; 97A.471, subdivision 3; 97A.475, subdivision 2; 97A.525, subdivision 1; 97A.535; and 97B.201; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 3 and 97B.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Wegscheid, Schmitz, Mrs. McQuaid, Messrs. Freeman and Luther introduced—

S.F. No. 1241: A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; providing for qualifications of commission members, budget criteria, plans, and reports; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 473.141, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 473.161, subdivision 1c; 473.1623, subdivisions 4 and 5; 473.303, by adding a subdivision; 473.377, subdivision 1; and 473.604, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Mr. Wegscheid introduced—

S.F. No. 1242: A bill for an act relating to human services; establishing requirements for rate appeals for intermediate care facilities for persons with mental retardation and related conditions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 256B.501, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Cohen; Moe, R.D.; Luther; Novak and Mrs. Brataas introduced—

S.F. No. 1243: A bill for an act relating to elections; specifying the time for precinct caucuses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 202A.14, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Messrs. Davis and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1244: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; clarifying certain appropriations; prohibiting importation of certain bees; changing certain milk inspection fees and requirements; changing time for sale of certain state-owned property; eliminating certain requirements for grain buyers licenses; paying certain claims; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 17B.15, subdivision 1; 19.58, subdivision 1; 32.394, subdivisions 8, 8b, and 9; 41.56, subdivision 4; and 223.17, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.



Messrs. Waldorf and Benson introduced—

S.F. No. 1245: A bill for an act relating to human services; requiring the commissioner of human services to initiate contested case hearings on nursing home appeals within a certain time period; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 256B.50, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Purfeerst introduced—

S.F. No. 1246: A bill for an act relating to occupations and professions; creating the Minnesota task force on interior designers and decorators and providing for its duties.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Peterson, R.W.; Luther and Novak introduced—

S.F. No. 1247: A bill for an act relating to government liability; providing that municipalities may not waive statutory immunities; authorizing municipal insurers to settle tort claims; clarifying that instrumentalities of municipalities incorporated as nonprofit corporations may be included in the self insurance pool; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 466.03, subdivision 1; 466.06; 466.08; and 471.98, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1248: A bill for an act relating to education; requiring secondary schools to offer courses in family life education; requiring students to complete a course in family life education before graduating; requiring family life education instructors to be licensed; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 126.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Peterson, D.C.; Messrs. Luther; Moe, R.D. and Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 1249: A bill for an act relating to small business; modifying the definition of small business; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 645.445, subdivisions 2 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Housing.

Ms. Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1250: A bill for an act relating to courts; conforming fees for the filing of an unlawful detainer action in Hennepin county with other civil fees and unlawful detainer fees collected throughout the state; changing Hennepin county conciliation court filing and counterclaim fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 488A.03, subdivision 11; and 488A.14, subdivisions 1 and 5.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Chmielewski, Wegscheid, Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Bertram and Morse introduced—

S.F. No. 1251: A bill for an act relating to employment; increasing the minimum wage; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 177.24, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Dicklich and Waldorf introduced—

S.F. No. 1252: A bill for an act relating to education; modifying post-secondary scholarships, grants-in-aid, part-time student grants-in-aid, and work-study grants; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 136A.101, by adding a subdivision; 136A.121, subdivisions 4, 5, and 10; 136A.132, subdivisions 3, 6, and 7; and 136A.233, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Piper, Mrs. Adkins, Messrs. Knutson, Beckman and Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1253: A bill for an act relating to human services; providing training of welfare fraud prosecutors and investigators; providing staff for fraud control functions; defining amounts of assistance indirectly paid; providing for joint trials; changing the date of payment of certain periodic support to the assistance unit; regulating certain property transfers; providing for incorrect assistance amounts recovered; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 256.74, subdivision 1; 256.98; 256D.05; and 393.07, subdivision 10.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1254: A bill for an act relating to local government; permitting the establishment of fire protection districts by cities and towns; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 465.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Luther, Jude and Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1255: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; authorizing the commissioner to contract for certain services; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 28A.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Messrs. Luther, Jude and Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1256: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; changing certain administrative and licensing provisions related to itinerant and mobile food services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 28A.065.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Mr. Pogemiller introduced—

S.F. No. 1257: A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; requiring distribution of unclaimed overpayments to the affected taxing districts; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 276.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Pogemiller; Laidig; Benson; Moe, R.D. and Johnson, D.J. introduced—

S.F. No. 1258: A bill for an act relating to metropolitan sports facilities; allowing a waiver of the admissions tax in certain circumstances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 473.595, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Marty and Ms. Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1259: A bill for an act relating to crime; extending the crimes of murder in the second degree and manslaughter in the first degree to deaths caused by the sale or distribution of controlled substances; imposing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 609.19; and 609.20; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 152.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Marty and Ms. Piper introduced—

S.F. No. 1260: A bill for an act relating to state government; providing reimbursement for certain child care expenses incurred in connection with service on state boards, councils, committees, and task forces; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 15.0575, subdivision 3; 15.059, subdivisions 3 and 6; and 214.09, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Marty introduced—

S.F. No. 1261: A bill for an act relating to the state building code; changing certain provisions relating to public buildings; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 16B.60, subdivisions 3 and 6; 16B.61, by adding a subdivision; and 16B.71.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mrs. McQuaid introduced—

S.F. No. 1262: A bill for an act relating to transportation; requiring the regional transit board to advise local governments of certain plans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 473.384, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Dahl, Lessard, Merriam and Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 1263: A bill for an act relating to wild animals; compensation to owners for destruction of livestock or fish; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 3.737.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Dahl and Willet introduced—

S.F. No. 1264: A bill for an act relating to consumer protection; providing for the retention and collection of used tires; providing enforcement; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 325E.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Marty and Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 1265: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; changing requirements for arrowheads used for big game hunting; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 97B.211, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mr. Marty and Ms. Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1266: A bill for an act relating to consumer protection; prohibiting vending machine sales of tobacco and tobacco products; providing remedies; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 325F; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 325E.07.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Marty and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1267: A bill for an act relating to energy; authorizing loans to cities and counties for energy conservation investments and authorizing repayment of those loans; authorizing issuance of bonds; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 116J.37; 275.50, subdivision 5; 471.65; and 475.51, subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Public Utilities and Energy.

Messrs. Marty and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1268: A bill for an act relating to energy and economic development; providing for the powers and duties of the commissioner of energy and economic development; classifying certain government data; providing definitions; authorizing certain Indian tribes to create community energy councils; authorizing governmental units to accept certain money from the state or federal government and providing for restrictions on that money; providing the purpose for which an appropriation may be spent; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 116J.09; 116J.10; 116J.19, subdivision 6; 116J.27, by adding a subdivision; 116J.36, subdivision 2; 116J.381, subdivision 2; and 471.65, subdivisions 1 and 2; Laws 1981, chapter 334, section 1, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Public Utilities and Energy.

Mr. Vickerman introduced—

S.F. No. 1269: A bill for an act relating to education; appropriating money for Worthington community college to join certain telecommunications networks.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Reichgott introduced—

S.F. No. 1270: A bill for an act relating to child abuse; authorizing the department of human services to establish a 24-hour toll-free hotline; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 626.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Hughes, Pogemiller, Ms. Peterson, D.C. and Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 1271: A bill for an act relating to education; providing tier revenue for learning year programs; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 124.223; 124.225, subdivision 1; 124A.01; and 275.125, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 124A.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Wegscheid introduced—

S.F. No. 1272: A bill for an act relating to public meetings; requiring certain notice for all meetings; permitting certain remedies for violations; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 471.705, subdivisions 1b, 2, and by adding subdivisions.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Morse, Frank, Storm and Vickerman introduced—

S.F. No. 1273: A bill for an act relating to public safety; providing that local governing body may appoint local board of appeal for order issued under the state fire code; providing for finding on cost-benefit ratio obtained by complying with order; providing for notice; providing for liability of owners of dwellings for nonfunctioning smoke detectors; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 299F011, subdivisions 5, 6, and by adding a subdivision; and 299F362, subdivisions 5 and 6.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Housing.

Mr. Brandl introduced—

S.F. No. 1274: A bill for an act relating to human services; requiring medical assistance payment for personal care attendant services to hospitalized ventilator-dependent recipients; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 256B.02, subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mses. Reichgott and Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1275: A bill for an act relating to Hennepin county; providing bonding authority for library construction and betterment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, section 383B.245.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Johnson, D.J. and Novak introduced—

S.F. No. 1276: A bill for an act relating to state land; authorizing private sale of certain tax-forfeited land in Lake county to city of Two Harbors.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Samuelson, Stumpf, Benson and Willet introduced—

S.F. No. 1277: A bill for an act relating to taxes; providing for the assessment of certain flight property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 270.071, by adding a subdivision; and 270.074, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Johnson, D.J. introduced—

S.F. No. 1278: A bill for an act relating to taxation; imposing the sales tax on sales of certain services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 297A.01, subdivision 3; and 297A.25, subdivision 10.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Morse introduced—

S.F. No. 1279: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; clarifying and amending the required offer of the state, a federal agency, or a corporation to offer a lease or sale of agricultural land to the immediately preceding owner; clarifying and amending provisions relating to designating a homestead and allowing designation of separate agricultural tracts in foreclosure proceedings; prohibiting waiver of statutory rights of debtors and allowing damages against persons who violate waiver prohibitions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1986, sections 500.24, subdivisions 2, 6, and by adding a subdivision; and 582.041, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and 5; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 550 and 582.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

### ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 12:00 noon, Wednesday, April 1, 1987. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate